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Liz Lightfoot (00:00:03):

Hi, my name is Liz Lightfoot and I'm a professor at the School of Social Work at the University of 
Minnesota. I'm happy to welcome you to this podcast where I'll be talking with Sharyn Dezelar about a 
new practice model for working with parents with disabilities called Parent-Centered Planning. Um, 
before we talk with Sharyn, I'll tell you a little bit about parent, the parent centered planning model. 
Um, and then we'll go on and have a more in-depth discussion with Sharyn.

Liz Lightfoot (00:00:30):

Uh, as many of you might know, there's more and more people with all types of disabilities who are 
becoming parents. Unfortunately, there are few formal services or supports to assist them with 
parenting as our support and service system focuses on supporting people with disabilities as 
individuals, rather than as parents or caregivers. So our social service system just really isn't designed for 
providing supports for caretaking right now. Um, hopefully this is changing and this is what we're trying 
to do with this new model. There have been some promising interventions developed to assist people 
with disabilities with parenting, but these tend to focus on increasing parenting skills like individual 
parenting skills, and we actually have some good evidence supporting some of these interventions, 
which is great, but these interventions focus mainly on strengthening individual's skills focused just on 
the individual or the parent with a disability rather than developing supports or looking at their broader 
environment, which is what we often focus on from a social work perspective or a disability supports 
perspective.

Liz Lightfoot (00:01:41):

And there really has been less emphasis on developing family or community supports. And there's only a 
few studies showing how these types of supports can help parents with disabilities. When intuitively we 
know that they can. Uh, the more I personally have been doing research highlighting the barriers 
parents with disabilities have been facing, the more I've become interested in developing even a very 
simpler basic program for parents with disabilities to figure out how they could start building their own 
supports. And I was fortunate to receive funding to do this from the National Institute on Disability, 
Independent Living and Rehabilitation Research, which we know fondly as NIDILLR as part of a 
partnership I had with the National Research Center on Parents with Disabilities out of the Heller School 
at Brandeis University. So together with my research assistant at the time, Sharyn, who I'll be talking 
within a few minutes, we created this Parent-Centered Planning model, which we have developed.

Liz Lightfoot (00:02:42):

And now we have pilot tested. And this model is based on the Person-Centered Planning approach, 
which is really common in working with people with disabilities, particularly youth transition age, but 
really used with people at all life stages, um, and very the Person-Centered Planning, um, approach the 
main goal of it is to help a person with a disability plan for supports through a process that assists 
people and their broader social networks to plan by focusing on a person's strengths and preferences 
rather than on a formal assessment or a formal plan, or having an expert determine what a plan would 
be. So key parts of person-centered planning are that it's individualized with a person as a disability at 
the center of the planning and decision-making process and supportive people are invited to participate 
such as family and friends, but they are not to direct the nature of the goals or to be directed decision-
making at all, uh, it's typically done using a series of structured exercises, focusing on strengths and 
preferences of the individual with the disability and is facilitated by a trained facilitator.
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Liz Lightfoot (00:04:00):

And again, that facilitator's role is to facilitate decision-making, um, of the person with a disability and 
their supportive team rather than to provide input or make assessments or make recommendations. So 
our Parent- Centered Planning Model, which we'll talk about today, draws on this person-centered 
planning approach, but broadens the focus from the individual to the parent with an intellectual or 
developmental disability and his, or her children with a specific focus on the parent in his or her 
parenting role. So that's what parent-centered planning is it's really taking this person-centered planning 
model and broadening it to be parent-centered or family centered. And we will go into the details of this 
model through a discussion with Sharyn Dezelar. And I'm really happy to have Sharyn today with me to 
talk about her experiences with the Parent-Centered Planning Model, because she was the social worker 
who the social work researcher who is responsible for implementing the Parent-Centered Planning 
Model here in our pilot study at the University of Minnesota. Uh, she is now an assistant professor of 
social work at St. Catherine University, where she teaches a variety of master's level social work classes 
and continues her research interests related to disability services and supports. So now I will ask Sharyn 
to, to talk with me about the Parent-Centered Planning Model. I am happy to have Sharyn here today to 
talk about her experiences with the parent-centered planning model. So can you walk through what the 
parent's centered planning model looked like as the social work researcher implementing it, using an 
example? And of course, obviously we will use de-identified examples here. So we're not actually giving 
the personal information of anyone here.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:05:54):

Yeah, absolutely. Um, the participant That I'm gonna talk about today, I'll refer to as Jessica in this story, 
um, and as stated that's not her real name. And so all the names including of her other family members 
have been changed throughout as well.

Liz Lightfoot (00:06:10):

And the details too.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:06:11):

and the details have been edited a little bit to protect her privacy.

Liz Lightfoot (00:06:16):

Okay.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:06:17):

Um, the process starts with an intake meeting, um, at this meeting we gather information about, um, 
who are the key support people that are involved in the parent's life. I ask questions about the disability, 
how that might impact parenting and get a sense of what types of things this person might want to work 
on. So what are the things in their life that are challenges for them or barriers for them? Um, while 
we're not really starting on a full goal setting process at that point, we're starting to talk about that. So 
we can plan our intervention in a way that's the most helpful to the family. Um, at that intake meeting, 
we identify who those key support people are so that we can invite them to a meeting, which is the 
second step the parent gets to decide if you know, who gets to be there and also how we're going to 
invite those folks. So I often helped with that process in other cases, such as, uh Jessica's she said that 
she was comfortable reaching out to her friend on her own to invite that person to the meeting. And.
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Liz Lightfoot (00:07:25):

Can you tell us a little bit more about Jessica?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:07:28):

Sure, yeah,

Liz Lightfoot (00:07:29):

What was her. What was her situation? What was her disability? What were her background 
infomation?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:07:34):

Um, yeah. Yeah.So um, when I show up to the intake meeting who is present, there is Jessica as well as 
her mom, whose name is Vicky and, uh, Jessica and her daughter Bea who's 13 years old, live with Vicky. 
And, um, this was not always the case. Um, they had, you know, lived on their own, had their own 
apartment. However, um, Jessica had a very, um, severe car accident that resulted in multiple injuries. 
Um, Bea her daughter was, uh, approximately three at the time that that happened. Um, so this is about 
10 years ago. Okay. And she had a very severe accident, um, that resulted in a traumatic brain injury, as 
well as some visual impairment, several broken bones. She's had multiple surgeries, reconstructive 
surgeries to heal from this accident. And, but the biggest negative impact for Jessica and her 
independence is the traumatic brain injury. It's really resulted in a loss of her being able to work.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:08:39):

She'd previously been an independent gainfully employed, um, registered nurse. And while clearly, still 
very intelligent, she really struggles to be organized. And she really struggles with maintaining her 
emotions. A part of her brain that was damaged in the accident, um, had a lot, has a lot to do with 
emotional regulation. And so her skills for that appear very childlike and she's able to articulate this, 
she's aware of it. And it was also very aware to me as I met with her, I saw examples of this happening. 
And so because of that, they moved in with Vicky, which is, um, Jessica's childhood home. Um, Vicky 
really helps Jessica take care of Bea and acts as almost a primary parent in a way when Jessica is not able 
to, to function well.

Liz Lightfoot (00:09:30):

So did, does Jessica have any other support people that she identified at this initial intake meeting?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:09:38):

Yes, she, she did mention, um, that she had a group of friends. Most of whom were not really supportive 
for parenting. They were just more like a group of girlfriends that she had occasionally, you know, would 
get together with. Um, however, she did identify one best friend. Um, his name is Pedro and they've 
been best friends since high school really. And that he is like a father figure to Bea. And, um, since Bea's 
dad, isn't very involved in her life, so he is involved and does help her out a lot. And so she also 
identified Pedro as someone that, um, was a good support for her, for parenting that she'd really like to 
have be a part of this intervention process.

Liz Lightfoot (00:10:22):

Okay. Then Jessica invites, who did she invite to the meeting?
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Sharyn Dezelar (00:10:26):

She invited Pedro and also Vicki to be a part of the meeting. And I met Vicky at the intake meeting and 
that was really helpful. We also do invite participants to have someone present with them at the intake 
meeting. It's their choice. If they feel like they would like someone to be there to help support them. 
And it was really helpful in this case, Vicki was able to fill in some of the gaps in the story when it was 
confusing for Jessica to share the story. As I had mentioned, she struggles with organization and it 
includes organization of her thoughts. She will tend to jump around from topic to topic. And so Vicki will 
help with that, you know? And so she was at the intake meeting as well.

Liz Lightfoot (00:11:09):

Okay. So then after you've invited people to the meeting, then what happens? What's the next step?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:11:14):

Yeah. Then we schedule a person centered planning meeting, and this is the main intervention, um, 
meeting that we have for the parent centered planning intervention. And at this meeting, we do a 
number of, um, things. We go through a goal planning process that is very strengths-based. And we start 
with asking the parent what their dreams are for the future. And, um, it's really important as in the title 
of the intervention that the parent is at the center. Their wishes, their goals are, what is centered. 
Support people are there to, you know, at times give suggestions, but more to discuss how they can be a 
part of supporting the parents goals.

Liz Lightfoot (00:12:05):

So it's really the person or persons centered planning philosophy, just addressing parenting, right.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:12:12):

Exactly, exactly. This intervention is modeled after person centered practices, um, which again puts the 
person at the center of the planning, the person with disabilities and stengths-based practices. Right. 
And we have altered this to focus specifically on parenting, on the parenting role. And so we started for 
Jessica's case, we started with her, her dreams for the future and which she, she struggled a little bit 
with this because with her challenges with organization, it's, it seemed a little abstract for her. I mean, 
she said very general, general things about, um, you know, would love to be living independent again 
with her daughter, but she also recognized her stated recognition that she didn't also really think that 
that was maybe a good idea, but she mentioned it as something that she thought about as in like a very 
dream-like sense. But when we broke it down from, um, dreams to, Hey, what are some really positive 
and possible goals for one year, that she was able to identify some specific goals.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:13:22):

Um, before we talked about those goals, however, we did talk about Jessica's strengths and she was 
able to identify that, you know, she was a very caring mother and when she was functioning, well, she 
was a very good attentive mother. And it's hard for people to talk about strengths without talking about 
their challenges. And so she did identify that it's day to day for her, how she's functioning. And there 
isn't really a way to predict it if she wakes up with like a really bad migraine or something that might last 
for two days. And she's basically in bed for two days and not able to function as a parent. And then in 
those cases, it's very necessary for Vicky to be there and to step in and be the parent. Jessica was 
fortunate in having the support of Vicky, her mother, because Vicky's retired. So she had the time to 
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give and she, and so Jessica fully recognized that this was a strength for her family, but also a privilege 
that not a lot of families have. She was in full recognition that they were okay because of Vicky. Um, So 
she.

Liz Lightfoot (00:14:23):

So that's a strength of hers too. Support

Sharyn Dezelar (00:14:24):

It is, It is, she did have that support of her mom.

Liz Lightfoot (00:14:27):

Right.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:14:28):

So that was definitely a strength. And, and then as I stated, when she was feeling well, she was a really 
good fun mom, liked to take her daughter to do things, um, very caring. This family has a ton of pets. 
And so, yeah. And so they were, um, and of which she is the primary caregiver, for the pets as well. And 
that, that's a very good thing for her to be doing.

Liz Lightfoot (00:14:54):

So, can I ask you, um, this takes place in their home, right?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:14:59):

Yes. Yes. So we're meeting, um, we're meeting with the participants really at the place that they feel 
comfortable. And of all of our participants everyone wanted to meet in their own home except for one 
preferred to meet at a coffee shop, but it's their choice. We prefer to do it in home because we want to 
help families in their natural environments. But if they're not comfortable with that, we certainly, they 
don't need to do that.

Liz Lightfoot (00:15:21):

Was the child there?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:15:23):

Um, she was there for part of the intervention meeting. Um, one thing that had happened as I had 
mentioned, how, um, Pedro was invited to this meeting and Pedro was present for the intervention 
meeting for about the first half of it. And then he brought Bea to urgent care due to a suspected sinus 
infection. And this was planned and discussed before I arrived. So the, um, he was planning to be there 
for the meeting. And then Jessica said, you know, Bea is really sick. Like instead of being at the meeting, 
can you actually take her to the clinic? Cause that's what I need .

Liz Lightfoot (00:15:59):

An example of support.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:16:01):
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It is. And, and he was very willing to do that. And it seemed that he'd done that before, like he was 
comfortable with what insurance the child had. And so he was, he was okay filling in for that role. So, 
but he was there for the beginning of the meeting. Um, he didn't add a lot of input, but he was present 
and just, he just is, it was a very calm kind person that it appeared that his presence with just was 
helpful for Jessica.

Liz Lightfoot (00:16:31):

So in, in other, um, examples of when you did the parent centered planning meeting, where there larger 
groups present, in some cases?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:16:39):

In a couple of cases, there were, um, groups of up to six people present, which could include friends, 
family members, you know, immediate family members like parents, aunts ,partners. So in some cases 
the groups were larger. In other cases, some families really struggled with finding anyone to invite and 
maybe only one person would be there. We actually had one, um, example where a person had invited a 
couple of friends and then no one showed up or they had indicated shortly beforehand that they 
couldn't come. So I think that really speaks to the limited supports that some parents with disabilities 
have for parenting in that they really struggled to even find people to invite.

Liz Lightfoot (00:17:29):

And, and this was very different from our typical person centered planning, which we might do with a 
young person with a disability where they might be able to enlist a whole host of people, friends, family, 
caring, adults, teachers, people from church, people from other other organizations who can come in. 
And sometimes we see examples where there's a dozen people at a personal planning meeting. But for, 
for these parents in our project, we had a hard time. Some of them had very limited supports.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:18:02):

They did. And again, some of them really struggled and they were really isolated. Some parents like a 
different example. There is a parent who lives in a disability high rise with her child and her child is the 
only child in the entire building. And so to think of how isolating that is for, for the child to be in a large 
apartment building. And there's not a single other kid there, um, as far as playmates and how close are 
they to parks and schools and things where kids are, um, that also made it challenging for that parent to 
have friends that were parents. She had lots of friends, they were a lot of friends in her building that 
were great support for her, but those people were not parents. And so they didn't really know the ins 
and outs of parenting as a parent myself.

Liz Lightfoot (00:18:56):

Like the camaraderie.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:18:57):

Right, the being able to vent about challenges with toilet training children or children who don't stay in 
their own bed at night and to not have any friends to problem solve that with was really a challenge for 
her as well as then for social opportunities for both her and her child. So that, I mean, that was a 
different case, but I think it highlights how isolated this population might be and how it may differ from 
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a traditional person centered planning model. And just how, because of the so few supports that some 
of these families had.

Liz Lightfoot (00:19:27):

Okay. Yeah. That's very interesting. Um, so, so we've got this smaller group at this parent centered 
parent centered planning meeting, and in Jessica's case, you've identified the strengths and the dreams. 
What were some of the positive, and possible goals that she had?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:19:47):

Yeah, well, at the intervention meeting, we really identified three main goals of things that she wanted 
to work on. And again, these are all identified by Jessica with some support and input from Vicki, but 
they are Jessica's goals. The first being more of a, just an immediate, shorter term goal, but it was an 
important one. Um, Vicky was coming up in about a month from the meeting, was going to be out of the 
country for a couple of weeks and was very concerned about how Jessica and Bea were going to 
function without her there because of the primary role that she takes on. And, you know, without 
getting into too much detail, this is an annual trip for Vicki. And in previous years, sometimes it's been 
really awful. Um, in terms of things that have happened while they're gone, um, you know, not in the 
terms of like extreme abuse or neglect, but more in the sense of the impact on Jessica and her mental 
health and her physical health with being so overwhelmed and not having Vicky support.

Liz Lightfoot (00:20:50):

The stress,

Sharyn Dezelar (00:20:50):

Just the impact of the stress on her, of not having that person to rely on, to help with her daughter. So 
that was, uh, a goal was preparing and making sure that, um, they had some plans and supports in place 
so that Vicki could feel a little more comfortable, uh, going away and less concerned about what was 
happening at home while she wasn't there and making sure that Bea is safe during that time and well 
cared for. And also from Jessica's perspective, it was, she brought it up, but her concern was a little bit 
more of my mom needs to let me do this. And so she wanted the independence and she didn't want her 
mom to over plan it. So the goal was directed by her. She wanted to feel like she was trusted to do it. 
And, you know, she, she wanted her mom to relax and let her do it.

Liz Lightfoot (00:21:47):

Such a good goal.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:21:48):

So, um,

Liz Lightfoot (00:21:49):

That's a very short term immediate goal.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:21:51):

Yes. that was a shorter term goal. The other two goals were a little bit more, long-term one related to 
Bea's mental health as B is an adolescent. Um, Jessica is really noticing some signs of depression and 
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anxiety, and she thinks a lot of it has to do with their family situation. The fact that she doesn't get to 
have much of a relationship with her father, also just family history of depression and anxiety. And so 
she really wants to get that addressed and she really wants to make sure that Bea is okay and get, Bea 
connected with some mental health services.

Liz Lightfoot (00:22:18):

Well that's a really insightful goal for her.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:22:21):

Yeah, absolutely.

Liz Lightfoot (00:22:23):

That explains she's a caring mom.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:22:24):

Yeah, absolutely. The third goal area that Jessica brings up is that she really wants to make sure or she 
wants to work on her relationship with her mom with Vicky. There is a lot of tension between the two of 
them. They both stated it and it was really apparent being in the home. It appears to me that there are 
some unaddressed, resentment and tension about this change in roles, right. And Jessica at times, um, 
as I mentioned previously with her struggle with lack of emotional regulation and emotional control, and 
she can, at times act very immaturely will, um, sometimes really yell at Vicky or scream at Vicky about 
things. Um, she'll just be very angry. Um, she'll seem very demanding and like, well, I need you to do 
these things for us. Vicky basically just absorbs all of that. Um, I did not observe Vicky to be combative or 
to argue back, but you could just tell that she was in a sense taking a lot of almost verbal abuse. It would 
seem, you know, that way.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:23:37):

However, Vicky was recognizing that this was words that were coming out of her daughter's mouth, that 
her daughter couldn't control. So you could tell she was trying really hard to take it personally, but that 
is a very hard thing to live with. And so they wanted to work on their relationship.

Liz Lightfoot (00:23:51):

And they both wanted to work on it.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:23:52):

They both wanted to work on it. Jessica brought it up and Vicki said, you know, confirmed that this was 
an issue. And she expressed some sadness about the change in the role that she was a caregiver for 
Jessica again, almost like parenting another teenager in a way with some of the emotional reactions. 
Whereas, you know, they used to be able to do fun mother-daughter things together and that's gone. 
Like they used to be able to take trips together and now that is gone. And so she really had a lot of 
sadness and um, so they wanted to work on that relationship. So that was the third main goal that was 
identified.

Liz Lightfoot (00:24:28):
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So then after you make these goals, then what's your, what do you do? How do you, how do you wrap 
up the meeting?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:24:35):
Yeah, Well, we start with the positive and possible goals for one year, and then we work backwards in a 
way to say, well, okay, so where are things at now? And identify the gaps in between now and what you 
want it to look like in a year and then really break down what are the supports, both informal supports 
as well as connections to services that you might need in order to achieve those goals. So we, we 
identify those resources that are needed that we need to build on. And we break down into more 
attainable action steps, like, well, what could we do in three months time that would be steps towards 
these goals, but are also very doable for three months. And then from the three month point, we 
identify one or two goal steps.

Liz Lightfoot (00:25:24):

Okay.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:25:24):

These would be things that we choose, something that we are pretty confident that are going to happen 
so that the person gets to build a very doable, but a bold step. And so really getting someone to make 
that commitment. And in this case, there were more than one bold step because they related to two 
different goal areas. One of the bold steps that the group came to was we scheduled a time to meet, to 
do a planning session about the Vicky's trip. So that was one of the thing was let's actually schedule a 
time to have a focusedliz conversation about Vicky's trip versus just sort of like talking about it casually.

Liz Lightfoot (00:26:07):

Right. So it was, you made an actual appointment.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:26:10):

Yes. We made an appointment to plan Vicky's trip.

Liz Lightfoot (00:26:14):

And where you were involved in that.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:26:15):

And I helped facilitate and support that appointment.

Liz Lightfoot (00:26:18):

Okay.

Sharyn Dezelar (00:26:18):
So that was one of the goal steps. The other one was that Jessica was going to call, make a phone call to 
the County that they lived in a children's mental health services and ask about, um, how she could be 
connected. So basically, you know, contacting that, that initial front door services, which are what some 
counties call it, their front door services. So just to make that call and to ask. Like, she didn't need to get 
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appointments scheduled or anything. It was just this one doable thing. You'd make this initial call to ask 
about getting connected with services and, and just learn about what are her next steps. So those were 
the goal steps that she identified at that time.

Liz Lightfoot (00:27:01):

So then afterwards, um, so sometimes in other types of person centered planning, it sort of ends there, 
but for the parent centered planning, we have some follow-ups. So can you tell us what the follow-ups 
were like or are like?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:27:15):

Yeah. So there was a little bit of variation based on the family's needs and goals, but typically there was 
an additional one or two meetings that happened that were continuations in a way of that parent 
centered planning meeting. Um, in this case, one of those was that planned meeting about let's plan for 
Vicky's vacation. And so that was one of those. It was, it was very, um, it had a specific purpose. In some 
other cases, those meetings might have been, uh, an opportunity for me to bring back some resources. 
So for example, if we had discussed what independent living services are or what, um, adult 
rehabilitative mental health services are, if we had discussed those things in the intervention meeting, 
and I had presented those as options, some families didn't know what those things were and were not 
connected to those services. And so then we would schedule that follow-up meeting and then I would 
bring them information about that. I would bring them like the phone numbers to contact and, you 
know, sort of how to start to get connected.

Liz Lightfoot (00:28:20):

So they would have ideas about what kinds of support they might need, but they didn't know what, 
what services existed, is that right?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:28:28):

Right. So those things came out of that parent-centered planning process, right. When we kind of 
identified what the goals are and then break that down into, what supports and services do you need to 
help you to meet your goals? Um, some people weren't aware of what those were, and also because I 
don't know ahead of time what the parents' goals are going to be. I couldn't call them with that 
information and to do at that time. So we would schedule a future meeting that was usually done within 
one or two weeks, because that was often tied to their goal steps. So I tried to go back out pretty quickly 
so that people could then make the, make that bold step because now they'd have the information and 
sometimes they had already made the step. And so then that was the second step, right?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:29:12):

So I may meet with people one or two times, following that initial parent centered intervention meeting. 
Then with this intervention, we did have a planned three months meeting again, and now this three 
months later meeting brings the team back together. And so this, those one or two meetings that 
happen after might have been with just me and the parent, depending on the situation and the need, 
right. But this three month meeting then involved bringing those other support people, all the support, 
people back together and reviewing, where are we at now? And we would update the goals and set new 
goal steps, right. And new action steps, because within three months time, we would have hoped that 
some of those, you know, three months steps that we had identified would have been accomplished. So 
in this case at the three months meeting, both Vicki and, um, Pedro were there again.
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Sharyn Dezelar (00:30:09):

So her support continued. Right. And so that was, um, how, how it worked for this family.

Liz Lightfoot (00:30:16):

Okay. And how were they doing it?

Sharyn Dezelar (00:30:19):

Right. Well, at the, at the three month point, it was, you know, reported that, um, the trip went fine. 
They didn't really, they kind of wanted to move on, didn't want to discuss it too much, which gave me 
the impression that perhaps there were a couple of challenges, but nothing so severe that it needed, 
they needed to rehash it to address it. And, and we were able to, um, I'll back up just for a moment 
when we did have that meeting, where we planned Vicky's trip, we were able to pull in additional 
supports for that time. Um, and in fact, we asked, had come up with the plan and then Jessica had asked 
Pedro to check in with her regularly on that trip. That was not normally something that he would have 
done. Um, and so they had planned, she had asked him to please call her and check in on them every 
day in case that way, if she was having a really, really bad day, he could come and, um, be there for Bea.

Liz Lightfoot (00:31:15):

Sounds like a reasonable plan.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:31:16):

Right, right. So that was what had happened. So at this three months meeting, we followed up on that a 
little bit, but not too extensively. Um, we did have some follow-up about the mental health goal for Bea. 
Um, there was really, uh, some challenges with that while Jessica would state, and I would certainly 
agree that she followed through, um, she made calls to the, um, get connected with chil children's 
mental health case management at the County. And she did have, um, an assigned worker who gave her 
a bunch of resources and referrals for getting some assessments done for Bea.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:31:57):

And I think also there was some insurance things that needed to be straightened out based on some 
complications with the health insurance. And so the worker was, you know, sort of giving her some 
things to, to follow up with on that so that they could get Bea involved in mental health services. From 
Jessica's perspective, the information was provided to her in a way that she was not able to follow 
through with, um, she would be given lists of potential clinics she could reach out to that were printed 
off. The internet font size was inconsistent, often, very small, pages weren't numbered. And so 
sometimes the phone number would be on the page after the page that listed who she was supposed to 
call. And that was really a challenge for Jessica because organization and paperwork is really something 
that she struggles with. And so the way that this stuff was provided to her was not done in a way that 
she could follow through with. And she indicates that she stated this, she said that she needed more 
help than that. She was very excited about the idea of case management, children's mental health case 
management. Cause she felt that's what she needed. She needed somebody to help her organize and 
manage it. And what she felt like she received were just like directives of what to do, versus any sort of 
support or skills. And she didn't feel like those was, were accommodated based on her disability based 
on her cognitive needs. Um,
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Liz Lightfoot (00:33:29):

So the material or the resources she was giving given weren't in an accessible format to her. She wasn't 
asked what her accommodation needs were.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:33:40):
She was not, it was also not visually accessible as a result of this injury. She struggles with some visual 
impairments and she literally couldn't see some of the fine print. She could not read it.

New Speaker (00:33:51):
And yeah, and I mean, there have been guidances from the Department of Justice and the Department 
of Health and Human Services requiring child protection offices to make sure that their services are 
accessible under the Americans with Disabilities Act. But I think this information, somehow isn't 
reaching everyone at the street level the implementors of these policies. And this is a really great 
example of this. So someone who, who even asks for a comp, she might not have used the right terms.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:34:24):

She may not have

Liz Lightfoot (00:34:25):

Like I need accommodations, but this is something that it's the child protection agency's responsibility.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:34:30):

Right. So she's indicating that she, um,

New Speaker (00:34:33):

I guess this is childrens mental health.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:34:34):

Yeah, this is children's mental health case management, but it's County, it's still County services that she 
saw it herself she's voluntarily seeking support and help. And so what she indicates to me is that she 
tells them I can't do this. I can't make these calls. I can't keep this straight. I'm not sure what I'm 
supposed to do. And her perspective is that the response she receives on this is very judgemental and, 
uh, including with a negative tone, indicating that she's not being compliant. She asked for these 
services and yet she's not following through. They also, you know, don't know that these words were 
used, but she's indicating that she felt like they were questioning her ability to be the parent because 
she couldn't follow through on this. And.

Liz Lightfoot (00:35:20):

That can be really scary for a parent where you think the County services are questioning your ability to 
parent.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:35:26):

Exactly. And Jessica being a previously very competent professional, who knows a lot about healthcare 
systems knows how to advocate for herself. And she asked to speak to a manager, um, and, and she did, 
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and she was explaining what had happened and how she wasn't, that the services weren't helpful that 
she reached out because she needed help. And she didn't feel like she was getting help. She felt like she 
was getting, um, more challenges rather than help. And so according to Jessica, this manager indicated 
that Jessica should be using her independent living services worker, ILS worker, to help her with this 
organization. So um an independent living skills worker is someone who does help with an individual 
with disabilities on a number of tasks. Um, it can include organization of paperwork and scheduling of 
appointments and keeping track of those things. However, the way that those services are well, the way 
that they're billed and the way that, the way that they're funded. And, um, the, the policies related to 
that is that it all has to do with the individual who has the disability. So they were for her own 
appointments,

Liz Lightfoot (00:36:37):

Not for, not for her parenting, her child.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:36:40):

Right, not for For her daughter's appointments. It's, it's very clear that the services are for the individual, 
with a disability. And so, and Jessica knew this, she knew that this worker was not supposed to help her 
with that. She had a really good relationship with her ILS worker. They had been working together for 
about five years and they had a good supportive relationship. And this worker would, you know, not to 
get anyone in trouble here, but at times go outside of that, just to say, well here, why don't you make 
this call first? Right. If it had something to do with the daughter, you know, just to, um, she wouldn't 
make those calls for her. She, because she needed to draw that boundary. Right. Whereas if it's about 
Jessica, she could take that advocacy role, but she did give some guidance as somebody who knows the 
system, at the same time, that's not in her role. And clearly this manager of the children's mental health 
services did not know that it was not aware that disability services do not look at parenting. They don't 
recognize parenting as one of those

Liz Lightfoot (00:37:41):

Major,

Sharyn DeZelar (00:37:42):

Major life functions that need support, um,

Liz Lightfoot (00:37:46):

Which is a big issue. You know, one of the largest issues in supporting parents with disabilities is that we 
don't have funding streams to support parents with disabilities.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:37:57):

We don't, the services are very siloed. There's the services for children and the services for parenting. 
And then in a, you know, completely separate policies, rules, and funding or services for disabilities. And 
the two just don't, and nor are they aware of each other, because again, here's what we're talking 
about. A County social services manager thought that the disability services should be helping her with 
this. When Jessica reached out to the County for help with that. Right. Because she knew her disability 
services could not do that. And so that's exactly the service she was seeking. And, and she was, she was 
terminated from the services. So because she was deemed non-compliant and so she just indicated just 
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how she was judged and treated was really a challenge. So this was one of her major goals and it was a 
big roadblock to getting those services. This is at the three month followup point

Liz Lightfoot (00:38:51):

So by the six month follow-up were the, were there any, any more steps towards her goals?

Sharyn DeZelar (00:38:59):

Yeah. Um, she, she was able to get, be connected with some mental health services. And what had 
happened is since the new school year started, so all of the, like roughly August, everything fell apart 
with the County services. And so because Bea, um, was in a traditional middle school, many middle 
schools have school-based mental health services and clinics. And so we all kind of discussed that. Well, 
now that we're almost to September anyways, but when the school year starts get her connected that 
way the insurance issue is still unresolved. So she still needed support with that. Because again, she 
didn't, you know, get that resolved. She needed to enroll, um, be in some county-based insurance 
because Jessica had insurance connected through her social security disability. And so she needed to get 
Bea, Bea was actually uninsured. And I didn't, we didn't know until I came, I came up through this, so 
that still needed to be resolved.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:40:00):

And so it became, well, let's just use the school-based services. And so when at the six month follow-up, 
it had been Bea had been receiving those services for a couple of months. And Jessica reported that the 
school social worker, which wasn't the person providing the services for Bea, but the school social 
worker was sort of overseeing it and organizing it and, and following up with Jessica and serving that 
role that Jessica needed. And she felt like that relationship was a positive relationship with that school 
social worker. She didn't feel that the school social worker judged her negatively for her needs, for 
support, which she did feel with the County. So it wasn't to a point to report a significant symptom 
reduction for Bea. At this point, she was really struggling with depression and staying focused in school. 
And, but she was, at least she was getting services. Somebody was, she was meeting with a therapist 
with a therapist regularly. The social worker was involved at the school and paying attention. So Jessica 
felt good.

Liz Lightfoot (00:41:03):

Good. And what about the relationship with her mother?

Sharyn DeZelar (00:41:06):

Yeah, so that was another thing that required a, uh, a meeting, a separate meeting. And so I, um, we 
scheduled a meeting to talk with just Jessica and Vicky about their relationship. And so I went and did a 
visit again with them, and we talked about that and in a way it was a, like a one time sort of lighter 
counseling session in a sense which I have experienced having been an outpatient mental therapist. So I 
felt comfortable doing that with them. But also recognizing that it wasn't my role to do that in an 
ongoing way, but it was sort of a, like a one time session where we got to talk about things. And if it 
would have seemed that ongoing family counseling would have been a good idea, we could have made 
those referrals, right? Like that would have been another service we would have tried to connect with.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:42:00):
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So, as I had mentioned previously with the story, um, there was really a lot of resentment, a lot of 
sadness, and you could just feel the tension in the room or in the home, just anytime being there, you 
could tell that there was a lot of caring and they just really had not spoken directly to each other about 
those feelings and acknowledged those feelings. They did acknowledge some loss and some changes. I 
think it was really helpful for Vicky to hear from Jessica, just how much she does appreciate her. And 
also just that awareness that her emotions are completely dysregulated and that she acknowledges that 
she does, for example, yell at her mother or be very harsh with her and very demanding with her and 
that she feels terribly that she does that. And she recognizes that she can't control it. It was really 
helpful for Vicky to hear that, to hear that Jessica knows that she's doing this and that she wishes she 
wasn't doing it.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:42:56):

And so it really provided Vicky and opportunity. And I think she did in the first place, but it was even 
more so to recognize that as a disability-like symptom, rather than something that was part of Jessica's 
personality, right? Like this was a disability symptom. So this was something that happened around the 
time of the three-month follow-up that we had that conversation because it wasn't one of the two goals 
that were identified to work on immediately. So at the six month appointment, they talked about, you 
know, the level of support is really pretty much the same, but they did think that perhaps the arguments 
had been less intense because Vicky's walking away. And so Vicky is when Jessica is lashing out, Vicky's 
just leaving the room and she's recognizing it as, this isn't my daughter trying to argue with me, this is 
the emotional dysregulation.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:43:47):

That is a symptom of my daughter's traumatic brain injury. And so she just walked away. And then even 
at that six month appointment follow-up appointment, it was almost even another, a little bit of a mini 
counseling session again, where, um, Jessica acknowledges that Vicky is doing that. She thanks her for 
doing that. And she says that that's what it's going to take because she doesn't think she has the skills to 
not do it. She's like, it's going to take you just walking away. So even if I'm yelling at you for walking 
away at the time, which is, was happening, you know, this is what, um, Jessica's saying, you know, even 
if I'm yelling at you as you're leaving the room, like, why are you leaving? We need to talk about this. 
You're doing the right thing by leaving. And so that was really affirming, I think for Vicky.

New Speaker (00:44:28):

Yeah that sounds very insightful too.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:44:29):

Yeah, it is mean I was just so impressed with Jessica's insight and her skills. It was just really challenging 
and sad to just see the impact of that. Just such a significant traumatic injury and how that can really 
change someone and change someone's functioning when they're still a lot of who they always were 
there. And then there's just this complete loss of skills in some areas,

Liz Lightfoot (00:44:58):

But it seems like they're able to, they're, they're co coming up with a new normal for, for themselves 
and how they're gonna work together to raise that girl.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:45:09):

https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=IcRrusRY8E9A2y_tYJPHD_67lT0U3_6mFjtBstE8T3RYcYD2jfxkK9IUOmiMu6_eiLGc-nmdUw-0BSNm_dqEFKbVD1o&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=2576.44
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=5_km_FCCnNP0y4dP2LvP5hBtRJxCBPUbs6EETbcMYvB2zMPFoga9-xpEUA1VBRKEXrDzqkV7ZhxirCXR49OcqNE0ePY&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=2627.26
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=d4MQTDaJDFRGVltea3f1k7rzB5VcqThGVV1bk1W6xm1AdqI0X4jXBaeTuWQdYtMKIUe08Vuh-0nXhwWdeTlS-jFHo8o&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=2668.68
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=M0uC25tm08vVn9H-kLi9fKBlSIcNpFjXQ224mBbDma02X1PxXFkLjOJoZBM5VFQc8ByZ9bijvGA_oC5_iKdtHz9z6A4&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=2669.98
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=65agZq-XjpVd1My5qw8Ey23LaTFMB4hwoaHTjzgUu7DCRg24z10RxWSw-N3jCtoH2eL4EfTZ6Ssxf9RRFPFhMNk3Hsg&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=2698.97
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=C1uvgMGBiFCzw2lcHhT4DlMv9uxy92p14uwqWExKvM-9Znm7qmfWgUGomUpoFLfJcqRwKjrp5Gb2bb8D4GIb9AO73SU&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=2709.35


Page 16 of 23

Right. To raise that girl. And I, and I think really, um, th the situation seems manageable and doable. I'm 
not sure how it's going to look for Jessica. Once Bea is no longer a child or no longer needs to live in the 
home, because right now they're sort of rallying around Bea and rallying together for Bea, which is good, 
right. Which isn't, which is great. Um, that's down the road, but I could see that being a transition that 
could be very challenging for this family. And if there were this type of service in the community, that 
would be another possible planning, planning, planning session, or planning time for this family to figure 
out, you know. It's a new transition.

Liz Lightfoot (00:45:50):

So like sort of taking a step back, um, in this project, we had 13 different families participate in this, and, 
you know, we can't talk about all of them, but what sort of strikes you as the person who did all these 
interventions, what were the greatest needs for the parents with disabilities who participated in this 
project?

Sharyn DeZelar (00:46:13):

Yeah, well, one, we mentioned earlier, which was the lack of support overall, and just how limited the 
support networks were for many of the families just limited in number and how isolated some people 
were. And related to that is a second area that I, that really struck me was those kind of fuzzy lines 
between formal and informal supports. So a lot of people identified like their paid staff as some of their 
primary support people for parenting. And as I mentioned, paid staff for disabilities, really, aren't 
supposed to be doing that. I mean, it's great that people are seeing the family unit. And some people 
had been like a direct support professional for someone for like three or four years. So they do become 
friends in a way, but it's still, um, there's still some recognition that the person is still paid to be there,

New Speaker (00:47:06):

Paid friends,

Sharyn DeZelar (00:47:07):

They're paid friends. So what if they leave that job? Are they still their friends or are they still that 
support person for parenting? And in some of our families, some of those relationships fell apart during 
the course of the intervention. So people who had identified, paid staff as support, and then those 
person left those jobs and there's, you know, then they lost that support for parenting. Another one that 
was really challenging to hear is one person, you know, indicated one of her paid support people as like 
her best friend, but then also felt like that she wasn't really doing her job. Like she was coming over and 
just sort of hanging out. And she actually needed things that needed to get done. And this person wasn't 
doing them because they were friends. So she was hanging out and watching soap operas with her. And 
it felt she felt stressed to push the person to help her with the duties because she didn't want to lose 
the friendship. Yeah. It was just really messy and fuzzy. And then how that played into supporting 
parenting as was really a challenge.

Liz Lightfoot (00:48:10):

Yeah. And that's one of the reasons people push for the natural supports because they are not, they're 
not paid supports, but can, it's easier said than done. And as we saw it in these families, most of them 
did have very few non-paid supports.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:48:26):
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Right. Um, one of the things that was an interesting outcome overall, I know this is jumping ahead a 
little bit, but in a couple of families, we were able to support those informal support network people to 
become paid. So there was more than one example where an immediate family member was providing 
a lot of support and the perse. And we were able to get that person enrolled as like a personal care 
attendant for that person. So that then that improved those relationships because then they were 
compensated for all the work that they were doing. So,

New Speaker (00:48:59):

which is different,

Sharyn DeZelar (00:49:00):

it's still a fuzzy boundary, but it was different,

New Speaker (00:49:03):

a different type of fuzzy, boundary.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:49:05):

It was an intentional, okay. So another area that is a really great need that we found, uh, we were really 
surprised at the high percentage of co-occurring mental illness diagnoses. Um, in fact, it was over three-
fourths of our participants had also had a diagnosis of a mental illness

Liz Lightfoot (00:49:26):

And the people were participants in the study. They qualified because they were either had a 
intellectual or developmental disability or,

Liz Lightfoot (00:49:35):

Or physical disability.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:49:36):
Right. So the mental illness, wasn't the qualifying reason while we certainly know some mental illness 
can be disabling. And some of, um, some of our participants did have diagnoses severe enough to be 
considered a mental health disability. However, that wasn't what qualified them for the study. So I think 
it just really speaks to this just significant mental illness within this population.

Liz Lightfoot (00:49:58):

And were most of the people receiving supports?

Sharyn DeZelar (00:50:01):
It was mixed. Um, some people were connected to services such as psychiatry, or we're seeing a regular 
outpatient therapist weekly, or an in-home therapist weekly, and some participants were not receiving 
any supports or services at all. Um, of a lot of those folks, they, they did mention having specific 
diagnoses, like they previously had been connected to services, they received the official diagnosis. And 
often when they took on the role of parenting, they lost those services.
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Liz Lightfoot (00:50:36):

Why do you think they lost them? Like they were too busy or

Sharyn DeZelar (00:50:39):

Right. Well, some of it was focusing on the parenting role and putting more attention on their children 
than on themselves. And so they just sort of.

Liz Lightfoot (00:50:46):

A typical parent thing naturally.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:50:47):

Right, right. So they just sort of stopped going. But also some of it is that maybe those supports aren't 
accommodating if they have very few supports overall, and now they have a toddler, right. They'd have 
to bring their toddler with them to their therapy session. And that does not work.

New Speaker (00:51:01):

Right. Or have somebody to care for the toddler, which if they don't have a support network,

Sharyn DeZelar (00:51:06):

If they don't have a support network, they don't have anybody to care for the toddler. Right. So that was 
just an interesting example. And some people were connected to some services, but maybe not all of 
the services they could receive. For example, there was one participant that used to receive ARMS 
services, adult rehabilitative, mental health services. He did continue to receive psychiatry, but had 
fallen off with ARMS and he wanted to reconnect with ARMS. And then he did as part of the 
intervention. So that was one of our, you know, real successful outcomes was getting people 
reconnected to those services of which a lot of which were mental health services that they maybe had 
lost or had never participated in.

Liz Lightfoot (00:51:46):

So what about the other disability services? Did you find that people were receiving those types of 
services?

Sharyn DeZelar (00:51:52):

Yeah. Again, some people were connected to independent living services, that area outside of mental 
health services that we saw the biggest increase in service connection to was vocational rehabilitation 
services. So a lot of folks had identified when we talked about their dreams and their positive and 
possible goals for one year, a lot of people identified some sort of employment activity and it might have 
been even something along the lines of, I want to start volunteering or I want to find a training program. 
And so, um, they were very realistic goals, but that was again, outside of mental health services. That 
was the area, the biggest area where people had not been receiving those services. And then they got 
connected with them. And then at the six month point, were still working with them and had made 
progress, you know, perhaps conducted some assessments. One participant had completed a job 
shadowing that was sponsored by vocational rehab. And then right after the six month appointment, 
which he was about to start up a part-time supported employment position and that came out of the 
intervention and the goals.
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Liz Lightfoot (00:53:04):

So how do you think participating? I mean, just from your impressions, how do you think participating in 
this process was helpful to the parents? I mean, I know that's sort of a broad question and you just gave 
one example, but

Sharyn DeZelar (00:53:19):

Right. Yeah. So definitely, um, taking action towards achieving goals, pretty much every family with the 
exception of one took action towards their goals. Okay. Um, right. And a variety of the goals. So that's 
pretty good. That's pretty good. And those goals may have been including connections to services like 
I've just been talking about, but some of those goals also included, um, reducing their isolation. They 
wanted to make friends, they wanted to have their children involved and, you know, they wanted to not 
have their isolation negatively impact their children so much. So for example, well, the example I gave of 
the child and the mom that live in the disability high rise, where there was no kids, she was able, she 
actually enrolled him in two regularly scheduled community activities because there was no children for 
him to play with. So he, um, became enrolled in Boy Scouts and he was participating in Boy Scouts every 
week.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:54:13):

And then she also, um, had him in a park and rec soccer program. So, right. And so up until that point, 
he hadn't been doing any community activities. And then she also saw this very insightfully as a way for 
her to make friends that are parents, because she had to bring, you know, like who are the other moms 
of the Boy Scouts, right. Like when the, you know, so this was a way for her to meet some, some 
parenting friends so that some parents,

Liz Lightfoot (00:54:42):

Good example.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:54:43):

Yeah. Yeah. So those are some of the examples of the action towards goals, as already mentioned, 
increasing connection to services, both mental health, as well as disability services. And then the other 
real area that we saw, the planning process was really helpful to the parents and their family was 
improving and clarifying those supportive relationships. This is really, um, highlighted in the case 
example we gave with Jessica and her mom, Vicky, and how the process really helped them have some 
clarifying of needs and where help is wanted.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:55:17):

Um, at times Jessica felt that Vicki took over and was helpful, like too helpful. Um, but sometimes she 
really needed the help, but on days that she was doing well, she wanted to do it. And so she was able to 
voice that to Vicky and Vicky was able to recognize when Jessica was doing well and just back off and 
consider it, Hey, I got a free day to myself. She doesn't need me today and she could go do something 
else. So that was good. And that really supported independence for Jessica as well as others. So there's 
other families where there was a similar pattern where if the parent with the disability had a lot of 
support from their parents. So from the grandparents, a lot of times they wanted more independence. 
Like they recognize they wanted the support, but they wanted more independence. And so by talking 
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about that, the grandparents were able to back off in some situations and everybody felt good about 
that.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:56:08):

Grandparents felt good about that too. They got to be grandparents again instead of primary caregivers. 
Right. So that was really helpful with those boundaries. We also did have a couple of families, you know, 
initially it seemed like a reduction in number of supportive relationships from people who were 
identified at the intake, like here's my group of friends. And then throughout the course of the 
intervention, um, they reported that they were no longer friends with certain people. So while that 
might seem like a reduction, part of the facilitated discussion about who your support network is and 
how those people support you kind of brought forward that some of these relationships were not 
supportive or helpful. And in fact, somewhere unhealthy and were draining, um, one participant realized 
that two of her friendships, she was always giving and they were never there for her. Um, she was taking 
care of their kids when they had appointments.

Sharyn DeZelar (00:57:01):

And then through this process, she specifically had reached out to someone to arrange childcare for a 
significant medical appointment that she had, and then it fell through and she had to cancel the 
appointment last minute because the person didn't show. And so she realized that these are actually not 
supportive and helpful people, and it felt very freeing and helpful for her to kind of eliminate those 
people as supports because she was giving so much including money. In some cases, some of the people 
it appeared almost were being taken advantage of financially. And so by cutting those people out, their 
situation was better.

Liz Lightfoot (00:57:37):

That's good. Yeah. That could be helpful, helpful to figure out these more healthy boundaries and 
determining who's, who's actually supportive and who isn't. So for, you know, when you were doing 
these, you're, you're obviously a really experienced social worker, you're a licensed clinical social 
worker. You have many years of social work practice, and personal experience with disability and 
variance in a wide range of types of social services. So you're really the ideal person for carrying for 
carrying this out because you can be helpful, you know, lots of community resources, but you also have 
clinical skills, like when you were talking about with Jessica. So how do you, I mean, I think you were the 
ideal person, but how do you think your social work experience helped you with doing the parent-
centered planning intervention?

Sharyn DeZelar (00:58:28):

Yeah, well, um, you know, thank you for saying that about my skillset and my experience. At the same 
time, I think other social workers can do it too. It's really the social work skills. It's the social work 
skillset. So we're really meeting people where they are at. And I think, you know, using the story of 
Jessica and how, I mean, you know, I don't know if this manager of the children's mental health services 
was a social worker or not. She appeared very judgmental about the fact that Jessica had some 
challenges and that if that made her suitable to be a parent, right, right. And we know all parents need 
support to parent, right. Disability or not, all parents need support and help. And, um, that whole, it 
takes a village concept. And so being able to meet people where they're at and then see them in that 
strengths-based way, recognizing the strengths that they have for parenting the skill set they have 
towards meeting their goals.
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Sharyn DeZelar (00:59:23):

This is sort of some of our, um, Social Work 101, like, I mean, this is how we approach working with 
people. And so that's a really important piece. I think, in working with this population and in doing this 
intervention specifically. Additionally knowledge of the resource system, how service systems work, how 
to help people get connected to resources, linking people, advocating for people. Again, these are some 
of these core social work functions, and that was really needed in many of these cases of which I 
explained with Jessica specifically how that came up, but that was pretty commonly the case that people 
needed some assistance with knowing what resources were out there, how do they get connected with 
the resources and then that follow up.

Liz Lightfoot (01:00:06):

So you, you function both as a facilitator because as a general person-centered planning model, the 
person running the group has a facilitator.

Sharyn DeZelar (01:00:15):

Correct.

Liz Lightfoot (01:00:15):

But in this version of it, you were the facilitator. You weren't doing social work assessments or making, 
helping them make goals or plans or giving them ideas for what they wanted to do. But when they came 
up with their ideas, then you could help with your knowledge of the system, and what types of supports.

Sharyn DeZelar (01:00:35):

Right. So it was very important to make sure that the goals were directed by the family, but then if they 
needed assistance breaking those down into steps or recognizing what resources might be needed to 
realize those goals, then it, it did take on a little bit of a case management role and families were aware 
from the start that it was time limited. Like they, they knew that it was all about going through this goal 
setting process and that I would help them through that process. But I'm not like a long-term case 
manager for parenting, right. I mean, because that's not the term, it's a short, it's a short term 
intervention, but there was a lot of case management, like tasks, referrals, um, researching resources, 
referrals following up. Um, I did very little advocacy with other social service systems. I really tried to put 
all of those skills onto the person to be, or their support people to be able to do that for themselves. But 
I did give people a lot of resources and help them break it down and told them, I told them how to do it. 
And sometimes sat there while they did it, but they, I didn't do it for them. I didn't call County workers 
for them.

Liz Lightfoot (01:01:43):

So do you think having a trained social worker is essential for facilitating this type of parent-centered 
planning intervention?

Sharyn DeZelar (01:01:53):

Absolutely. As mentioned previously, that social worker skillset was really important. And also as in the 
example of Jessica, there were times when the meetings almost turned into like a light counseling or like 
a brief counseling. So having those skills to be able to facilitate healthy discussion between family 
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members about challenges and expressing feelings and making sure multiple voices are heard, um, you 
know, is, is very much a counseling activity, a therapeutic activity in a sense, right.

Liz Lightfoot (01:02:28):

You know, this was a short-term intervention. It's not a long term intervention. So it's conceivable that 
some organizations that provide services to people with disabilities who might happen to be parents or 
organizations that do support parents with disabilities, specifically, there aren't that many of those, but 
that they could consider offering parent-centered planning for parents with disabilities. What advice 
would you have for an organization or a social service organization that was thinking of doing this?

Sharyn DeZelar (01:02:59):

Yeah, well, I definitely think that organizations should seriously consider taking this on as a role and it 
could fit within an existing staff or could fit within an existing case management type role, for example, 
or a disability services role. Because as social workers, like we're used to wearing lots of different hats as 
we work with folks. And so it could be discussed, you know, okay, now I'm going to facilitate, you know, 
like you said, using the facilitator role, we're going to facilitate this parent-centered planning model. And 
you can do that with, you know, kind of embedded within other case management services or other 
types of services. I think it's really important that some, uh, you know, some groups take this on because 
as you mentioned, there aren't services specifically for parents with disabilities. There's very few 
scattered across the country, you know, and within larger metropolitan areas, such as we're in, there's 
really nothing that's specific for that population.

Sharyn DeZelar (01:03:57):

And, you know, it's definitely something that is needed. Um, Jessica's example really highlights how 
siloed those services are. Services for disabilities and services for parents are just not interacting at all 
and working together and not even aware what the other is doing. So I think for, you know, disability 
services to really take that role on to me, seems like a really good fit, recognizing the individuals with 
disabilities that they're working with as whole people and as members of families and as caregivers 
themselves, not always as people receiving care giving, right. And that sometimes are caregivers 
themselves. And that's part of who they are as a whole person and that we can support. We can support 
that.

Liz Lightfoot (01:04:38):

Well, that seems like a really sort of good way to end our discussion here. Do you have any final words?

Sharyn DeZelar (01:04:45):

Well, I just really would like to, um, put the call out to our disability service system to begin to recognize 
people with disabilities as parents and their parenting role as part of who they are as a whole person. I 
think that's a growth area for disability services. I also think that services that work with families and 
services that are directed towards children need to have greater awareness of disability issues and 
recognizing the requirements to provide accommodations. I mean, the Americans with Disabilities Act 
requires this and that they need to be providing accommodations and that it's not a burden to do so. It 
should be done because these are people and these are parents and it's best for kids to be with their 
parents, right? Like research has shown it's best for kids to be with their parents. So we should be able 
to provide support to families, to be able to stay together, providing support to parents, to be able to be 
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the best parents they can. And it just really seems like some of our services have a long way to go in 
learning and understanding that.

Liz Lightfoot (01:05:48):
It also seems to me, you know, we're both social work professors that this is something that we might 
want to embed more in our social work education, where we're looking at parents as whole people.

Sharyn DeZelar (01:06:01):
Right. We're looking at parents as whole people. And we're looking at people with disabilities as whole 
people.

Liz Lightfoot (01:06:06):

and people with disabilities as possible parents,

Sharyn DeZelar (01:06:07):

not just as clients that need caregiving, but also people that might be in a caregiving role. Definitely.

Liz Lightfoot (01:06:14):
Right. Well, I want to thank you very much for coming and sharing your experiences in this project. And I 
hope that people listening will think of ways that they might be able to incorporate parts of this model 
or the entire model into their service system.

Sharyn DeZelar (01:06:31):

Yeah. You're welcome. Thanks. It's been a pleasure.

Liz Lightfoot (01:06:33):

Yes. Goodbye.

Speaker 4 (01:06:36):
This podcast was supported in part by a grant from the Minnesota department of human services, 
children and family services division.

https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=Ap4F5HT2VDqKRAE_aFii3woLSo0m0kAgcKLVnlwF1EKn8558fIWrtIt-9ZoNtgpAE_5QgNegZXRc6SAK_7LxLa96Nhs&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=3948.09
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=Ll5qGFN_vpRaeicXRxEmeUQx16DhCZ3t8331D5XwpNqy-I7Alfy7g2Vx8_bcND42RO6RrfM7BytKKhYM1u6vNv3z8HY&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=3961.5
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=fwcn_KypDX-jgelWkBds5k7ErbdIYKqeFCzOnPh4-pvPsu1pBSHxGzT8k_WSRlYOwM1MPqmHZSEpuNpUpFnylZuKrjg&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=3966.06
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=ALN81bk10snZzasb0GwSFfXJBq9QPiBP3uy4b-w-HOzlECamacwXoqvTVKtMxA123WPyLQvj-x_HASqXO045ppuQmNI&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=3967.79
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=lxe3c9o8ego45BJgmFFjEJBKJUB4YBSTPdvBYowEaCyteiTgE7LaGtrZKPReOMbYVWrxqJ2aLoON4WMUegiDdYzpVxs&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=3974.37
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=via2uTObl_9oGcyRRy2LNDpW-c_dpBafGx81IDXXiaCeLiSONpaB5FMjNcdbkAFfq75tCR7R-rHi5QlbzDNfOftLSqs&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=3991.35
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=ZlBlsqH2eCvRuNrc4s7yjIHkcT7nx33SZCvXkJaCWe2X8XqZmyW-hJug_fVR6WtXSAALrq43A4O7QJ_NXKLTC_KYJxw&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=3993.15
https://www.rev.com/transcript-editor/Edit?token=4R4jYuYMSiL_iiXWModansa9kJ3xKoqCY6gj7VLp370AA2P6pp4RXwFsF1lvWSbTTXaUuUJv0raPU4EDRdOxAIEDjGY&loadFrom=DocumentDeeplink&ts=3996.84



